
 

City of Sandy 

Agenda 

City Council Meeting 

Meeting Location: City Hall- Council Chambers, 39250 
Pioneer Blvd., Sandy, Oregon 97055 

Meeting Date: Monday, February 3, 2020  

Meeting Time: 6:00 PM 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 

 

 1. WORK SESSION WITH PARKS & TRAILS ADVISORY BOARD - 6:00 PM 

   
 
 1.1. Roll Call   
 
 1.2. Special District Discussion   

 

 2. REGULAR MEETING - 7:30 PM 

   

 

 3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

   

 

 4. ROLL CALL 

   

 

 5. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

   

 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

   

 

 7. CONSENT AGENDA 

   
 
 7.1. January 6, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes  

City Council  Work Session and Regular Meeting - 06 Jan 2020 - Minutes 

3 - 41 

 
 7.2. January 13, 2020 Council Work Session Meeting Minutes  

City Council Open House & Special Meeting - 13 Jan 2020 - Minutes 

42 - 43 

 
 7.3. January 15, 2020 Council Goal Setting Minutes  

City Council Goal Setting Work Session - 15 Jan 2020 - Minutes 

44 - 87 

 
 7.4. January 29, 2020 Council Work Session Minutes  

City Council Work Session - 29 Jan 2020 - Minutes 

88 - 110 

 
 7.5. Parks and Trails Advisory Board Member Appointment  111 

Page 1 of 119



 
Parks and Trails Advisory Board Applicant 

 
 7.6. DEQ Planning Loan Amendment  

DEQ Planning Loan Amendment 

112 - 115 

 

 8. RESOLUTIONS 

   
 
 8.1. Resolution 2020-01 Customer Assistance Program Rate for Sewer Service  

Staff Report - Resolution 2020-01 

Resolution 2020-01 

116 - 118 

 

 9. NEW BUSINESS 

   
 
 9.1. City Recorder Appointment  

Staff Report - City Recorder Appointment 

119 

 

 10. REPORT FROM THE CITY MANAGER 

   

 

 11. COMMITTEE /COUNCIL REPORTS 

   

 

 12. STAFF UPDATES 

   
 
 12.1. Monthly Reports   

 

 13. ADJOURN 

   

 

Page 2 of 119



 

 

 

MINUTES 

City Council Meeting 

Monday, January 6, 2020 City Hall- Council Chambers, 39250 
Pioneer Blvd., Sandy, Oregon 97055 6:30 PM 

 

 

COUNCIL PRESENT: Stan Pulliam, Mayor, Jeremy Pietzold, Council President, John Hamblin, Councilor, 
Laurie Smallwood, Councilor, Jan Lee, Councilor, Carl Exner, Councilor, and Bethany 
Shultz, Councilor 

 

COUNCIL ABSENT:  

 

STAFF PRESENT: Karey Milne, Recorder Clerk and Jordan Wheeler, City Manager 

 

MEDIA PRESENT:   
 
 

1. WORK SESSION - 6:30 PM   
 1.1. Roll Call   
 
 1.2. Utility Rate Assistance Program Proposal 

 
Staff Report - 0215 
 
Councilors expressed interest in establishing an assistance program in 
coordination with the upcoming sewer rate adjustment.  Based on the 
Council's feedback, staff developed a draft assistance program proposal based 
on best practices from comparable cities.  The eligibility threshold is proposed 
to be 185% of the federal poverty level, and the discount would include a 50% 
reduction of the sewer portion of the utility bill.  The program would have an 
annual application/enrollment process.  

  

The Council generally agreed with the proposal.   Questions were asked about 
the annual renewal process.  Councilors Exner and Smallwood suggested the 
City offer water saving tips for customers.  Councilor Pietzold cautioned staff 
to ensure documents used to prove customer eligibility are treated with 
appropriate security processes given the personal information involved.    
Utility Bill Assistance Program 

4 

 
 1.3. Adjourn Workshop   

 

2. REGULAR MEETING - 7:00 PM  

Page 1 of 39

Page 3 of 119



City Council  

January 6, 2020 

 
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

4. Roll Call  
 

5. Changes to the Agenda 

Public Comment was moved to after Parks and Recreation Community Survey Results.  

 

 

6. Consent Agenda  
 
 6.1. City Council Minutes   
 
 6.2. Amendment to Existing SRF Planning Loan 

 
Staff Report - 0214  

 

 
 6.3. Approve Consent Agenda: 6.1 City Council Minutes and 6.2 Amendment to 

Existing SRF Planning Loan  

 

 

7. New Business   
 7.1. Parks & Recreation Community Survey Results 

 
Staff Report - 0210 
 
Representatives from the City's surveying contractor, Campbell Delong 
Resources Inc, delivered the results of a survey conducted to measure public 
support for various options for improving the Community Campus site, and for 
establishing a dedicated special district for funding purposes.  The survey 
included a scientific random sample element, and an open website-based 
element. 

  

Overall, survey respondents strongly supported retaining the Aquatic Center.  
Expanded service proposals that received the most support included trail 
access to the Sandy River, a playground, community meeting spaces, and 
outdoor sports fields.  Respondents also supported placing the question of 
whether to establish a special district before voters.  The full presentation 
made by the consultants is attached.  
2019 Community Survey Results Presentation 

5 - 39 

 

8. Public Comment 

Kathleen Walker, 15920 Bluff Rd, Sandy OR, pointed out that only 10 of the 40 acres 
are easily developable.  She emphasized the importance of waiting for the results of 
the Parks Master Plan update effort before moving forward on the Community 
Campus project, and avoiding two parallel efforts that lack coordination. 

 

Page 2 of 39

Page 4 of 119



City Council  

January 6, 2020 

 
 

9. Report from the City Manager 

City Manager, Jordan Wheeler, asked the Council to try to select a date for the goal 
setting meeting.  Council decided on January 15th at 5pm, location to be determined; 
January 29th will be held as a back up date or an extension to the 15th.  He also 
stated that the City received a letter from the County Board thanking Sandy for its 
efforts to maintain transit service without interruption. 

 

 

10. Committee / Council Reports 

Councilor Schultz thanked the survey consultants for their efforts.   

Councilor Exner related that the Arts Commission will be working on several murals 
over the next year, and expressed that he was impressed by the candidates who have 
interviewed for the open police position. 

Councilor Lee stated that morale is high among transit employees.  The 20 year 
anniversary for the transit program is approaching.  She will be serving on the water / 
wastewater policy committee for the League of Oregon Cities. 

Councilor Pietzold stated a meeting of the Economic Development Committee is 
upcoming.  He also requested updates on the monthly reports. 

Mayor Pulliam will be presenting to the Sandy Connect group on county and 
statewide housing issues.  A meeting with ODOT is also upcoming regarding Highway 
211. 

  

 

 

11. Staff updates   
 11.1. Monthly Reports   

 

12. Adjourn  

 

 
 

_______________________ 

Mayor, Stan Pulliam 

 

 
_______________________ 

City Recorder, Karey Milne 

 

Page 3 of 39

Page 5 of 119



Page 4 of 39

Page 6 of 119



Parks & Recreation
Community Survey Findings

Data collected fall 2019

www.cdri.com

Page 5 of 39

Page 7 of 119



Contents

Methods 1
Research Results 4
Demographics
Rating of potential aquatic center features
Rating of other property suggestions
Verbatim comment highlights
General opinions about property use
 Support for placing district concept before voters

Conclusions & Recommendations 29
Appendix 34
 Survey questionnaire materials
Verbatim comments

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com

Page 6 of 39

Page 8 of 119



Methods

Survey questionnaire developed with City of Sandy
Mailout survey with online option
5,278 mailing to random selection of voting 
households in three phases:
Announcement card
 First mailer with survey
 Second reminder mailer with survey
 Each mailer indicated online option for taking survey

1216 surveys from random sample returned
12% (149) online; 88% (1067) mailed
Additional surveys filled in online by general community, 
analyzed separately.

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com1

Page 7 of 39

Page 9 of 119



Methods, continued…

Sample: Total Sandy Oregon Trail, 
outside Sandy Estacada

Mailing sample 5278 2113 2112 1053

Response rate 23% 29% 23% 12%

Surveys returned 1216 608 485 123

Weighted Totals 1209 359 736 114

Worst case reliability of weighted 
segment* ±3.2 ±5.2 ±4.5 ±9.2

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com2

Weighting for 1) 50/50 female/male (unweighted is 64% 
female) & 2) Distribution of voting population

 Tables, charts in report reflect weighted data
 Verbatim comments reported are from all who offered 
comments, unweighted

*Worst case reliability figures differ from standard reliability calculation to account for weighting impact

Page 8 of 39

Page 10 of 119



Research Results

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com3

Page 9 of 39

Page 11 of 119



3 in 10 have children at home 

32%

38%

21%

Yes, 27%

68%

62%

79%

No, 73%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Estacada

Sandy

Greater OTSD*

Total

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com4

Q: Do you currently have children under the age of 18 in your household?

* Greater OTSD = the Oregon Trail School District except for City of Sandy

Page 10 of 39

Page 12 of 119



Most live in owner‐occupied homes

79%

87%

92%

Own, 90%

21%

13%

8%

Rent, 10%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Estacada

Sandy

Greater OTSD

Total

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com5

Q: Do you own or rent your current home?

Page 11 of 39

Page 13 of 119



Just over half have a college degree

HS grad, 19%

10%

13%

13%

30%

38%

32%

Some College, 34%

33%

37%

29%

College degree, 32%

5%

2%

8%

6%

10%

13%

17%

Post grad deg
15%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Estacada

Sandy

Greater OTSD

Total

Less than HS HS grad Some College College degree Some post grad Post grad deg

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com6

Q: What is the last year of education you completed?

Page 12 of 39

Page 14 of 119



Average respondent age is 57, though differences 
by area are significant

15%

18%

3%

9%

14%

26%

15%

18%

17%

14%

13%

14%

20%

18%

25%

22%

35%

24%

43%

36%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Estacada

Sandy

Greater OTSD

Total

Under 35 35‐44 45‐54 55‐64 65 & over

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com7

Q: What is your age?

 Average age for Sandy 51; Greater OTSD 60; Estacada 55.

Page 13 of 39

Page 15 of 119



Average length of time in local area is 25 years; 
shorter in Sandy (18), longest in greater OTSD (28)

31%

27%

14%

19%

11%

14%

9%

11%

11%

25%

17%

19%

26%

23%

34%

30%

20%

11%

26%

21%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Estacada

Sandy

Greater OTSD

Total

Up to 5 years 6‐10 years 11‐20 years 21‐40 years 41 or more

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com8

Q: How long have you lived in the local area?

Page 14 of 39

Page 16 of 119



One in 3 are frequent or regular users of P&R
facilities; Sandy residents more than others

24%

11%

24%

20%

31%

19%

27%

25%

23%

18%

25%

23%

14%

20%

15%

16%

9%

30%

9%

15%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Estacada

Sandy

Greater OTSD

Total

No visits A few (1‐5) Occassional (6‐10) Regular (20+) Frequent (wkly or dly) Unsure

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com9

Q: In the last year, how often has anyone in your household visited a local park or 
recreation facility?  Such facilities include parks, pool, trails, playing fields, skate 
park, and similar publicly‐owned facilities

Page 15 of 39

Page 17 of 119



Q: For the indoor pool to continue serving the public, 
additional public investment would be required. Regarding 
the pool, do you believe the City should…

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com10

Build an expanded Aquatic Center with features such as 
indoor & outdoor pools & a splash pool for young children
Repair & renovate the existing indoor pool only
Remove the pool & convert area to a less expensive use
Unsure/Other 

Page 16 of 39

Page 18 of 119



Three‐quarters support keeping Aquatic Center; 
few endorse removal

46%

44%

36%

39%

26%

32%

38%

35%

2%

11%

10%

10%

25%

13%

15%

16%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Estacada

Sandy

Greater OTSD

Total

Expand Aquatic Center Renovate existing only Remove & convert Unsure/other

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com11

Q: For the indoor pool to continue serving the public, additional public investment 
would be required. Regarding the pool, do you believe the City should…

Page 17 of 39

Page 19 of 119



Differences by area are less significant than 
similarities…

Expand Aquatic Center, 
39%

Renovate existing only, 
35%

Remove & convert, 10%

Unsure/other, 16%

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com12

Q: For the indoor pool to continue serving the public, additional public investment 
would be required. Regarding the pool, do you believe the City should…

Page 18 of 39

Page 20 of 119



Subset review of overall pool recommendation

Support for expansion (39% overall) is higher for 
under age 45 (53%), frequent P&R facility users 
(47%), & households with children (57%)
 Essentially, younger adults, especially those with children 
in the household, support expansion more

However, most voters are not in these categories
Also, women (44%) support expansion of the 
Aquatic Center more than do men (37%)

Between expansion & renovation only, Sandy & 
Estacada respondents lean toward expansion, 
while Greater OTSD respondents split about evenly.

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com13Page 19 of 39

Page 21 of 119



Q: If the pool area is improved, how important is it to include 
the following features (Very, Somewhat, or Not Important)?

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com14

Indoor pool for year‐round use?
Outdoor pool for summertime use?
Water slide & other recreational features?
Splash pads & fountains for younger children?
Warm water pool?

Page 20 of 39

Page 22 of 119



Indoor pool for year‐round use is plainly the most 
important aquatic center feature of those tested

19%

24%

34%

33%

Very, 73%

37%

36%

30%

Somewhat, 35%

14%

9%

8%

Unsure
12%

6%

4%

Not, 35%

33%

25%

26%

9%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Water slide and other recreational features

Outdoor pool for summertime use

Warm water pool

Splash pads & fountains for younger children

Indoor pool for year‐round use

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com15

Q: If the pool area is improved, how important is it to include the following 
features?

Page 21 of 39

Page 23 of 119



Greater OTSD respondents show somewhat less 
support for pool features tested, though still similar

25%

31%

26%

46%

Estacada, 67%

23%

25%

40%

33%

Sandy, 74%

16%

22%

32%

31%

Greater OTSD, 73%

19%

24%

34%

33%

Total, 73%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Water slide and other recreational features

Outdoor pool for summertime use

Warm water pool

Splash pads & fountains for younger children

Indoor pool for year‐round use

“Very Important” rating

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com16

Q: If the pool area is improved, how important is it to include the following 
features?

Page 22 of 39

Page 24 of 119



Subset review of recommended pool amenities

Greatest variability is on “very important” rating 
for indoor, year‐round pool:
Women (82% very important) are more supportive than 
men (65%)

Under 65 (79%) vs. 65+ (70%)
Households with children (83%) vs. those without (70%)

Variability in response is less on other amenities, 
aligning with general expectations (e.g. households 
with children more supportive of child‐oriented 
amenities).

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com17Page 23 of 39

Page 25 of 119



Q: The following are suggestions for other improvements at 
the 40‐acre property to serve residents of Sandy & 
surrounding communities. Which suggestions are important 
to include in final plans?  (Very, Somewhat, or Not important)

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com18

Community meeting spaces
Dog park
Indoor gym and athletic facilities
Indoor performance center
Mountain bike trails
Outdoor sports fields
Outdoor amphitheater
Paths/trails providing access to the river
Playground
Skatepark
Tennis courts/pickleball courts

Page 24 of 39

Page 26 of 119



Access to river & playgrounds earn highest support 
among other suggestions

14%

15%

17%

18%

18%

23%

27%

30%

33%

42%

Very, 52%

36%

38%

33%

31%

35%

37%

31%

40%

40%

36%

Somewhat, 33%

Unsure, 12%

11%

10%

9%

10%

6%

7%

8%

7%

6%

4%

Not, 37%

36%

40%

41%

37%

34%

35%

23%

20%

16%

11%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Indoor performance center

Tennis courts/pickleball courts

Mountain bike trails

Skatepark

Outdoor amphitheater

Indoor gym and athletic facilities

Dog park

Outdoor sports fields

Community meeting spaces

Playground

Paths/trails providing access to the river

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com19

Q: Which other suggestions for improvements at 40‐acre property are important to 
include?

Page 25 of 39

Page 27 of 119



Ratings from 3 geographic areas roughly similar

 Almost no geographic difference in “very important” rating 
for top two suggestions (river access & playgrounds)

 Sandy “very important” ratings more than 5 points above 
Greater OTSD on:
Playground (46% vs. 39%)
 Indoor gym & athletic facilities (29% vs. 21%)
Mountain bike trails (22% vs. 14%)
Outdoor amphitheater (21% vs. 15%)

Greater OTSD more than 5 points above Sandy & Estacada 
on one item: Community meeting spaces (36% vs. 29% & 
30% respectively)

 Estacada responses are more supportive of a dog park (38% 
“very important” compared to 27% overall), otherwise 
generally similar to others

No surprises in types of variability on other suggestions.
Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com20Page 26 of 39

Page 28 of 119



About 1 in 3 offer additional written suggestions

Many emphasize results already tabulated
Others suggest various ideas not tested
 Space/activities for children/teens (e.g. after school); 
more walking trails, basketball, community/rec center, 
and rentable indoor & covered outdoor areas for private 
parties earn multiple mentions

Others, e.g., archery or bowling, mentioned by a few
Various comments relate to cost concerns
 Some seem rooted in general concern about keeping it 
reasonable, efficient, carefully‐managed

Others are unequivocal in their desire to avoid 
new/increase in tax of any kind.

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com21Page 27 of 39

Page 29 of 119



Q: Moving forward, which of the following do you 
believe is the best approach?

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com22

Use the entire property for public use, including recreation 
facilities and park land
Use the majority of the property for public parks and 
recreation while converting some to mixed‐use private 
development compatible with the public use
Sell the majority of the property for private mixed‐use 
development
Unsure

Page 28 of 39

Page 30 of 119



Most support using entire property for public 
recreation & park land

Use entire property for 
public use ‐ recreation 
facilities and park land

56%

Use majority for parks 
& recreation; convert 
some to mixed‐use 
private development 
compatible with public 

use
27%

Sell the majority for 
private mixed‐use 
development

9%
Unsure
8%

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com23

Q: Moving forward, which of the following do you believe is the best approach

Page 29 of 39

Page 31 of 119



Variability by geographic area on approach going 
forward is minimal
Support for using entire property for public use 
supported by 61% of Sandy respondents vs. 54% of 
those in greater Oregon Trail School District area
 Estacada support (54%) similar to greater OTSD

Bigger differences in support are by:
Age — those 65+ show lower support for entire property 
use at 52% compared to 60% for younger adults

Other groups showing more support for entire property 
use, such as having children & making greater use of P&R
facilities, are as would be expected.

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com24Page 30 of 39

Page 32 of 119



Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com25

Explanation: Added taxpayer support would be needed to pay for 
development & operation of the 40‐acre property for public use & 
to support other area park & recreation facilities. One option is to 
ask voters to approve a “special district” that would have its own 
board of directors & a district‐wide property tax rate to support it. 
The district would…
Have boundaries that include Sandy & the greater Mt. Hood 
community (including communities from Estacada & Boring to 
Government Camp).
Offer improved parks & recreation facilities district‐wide, while 
charging residents lower in‐district rates for all fee‐based activities 
such as the pool or indoor gym facilities.

Q: More work is necessary before a specific proposal, including a 
specific tax rate, can be presented to voters for a decision.  Do you 
support work on this concept continuing so it can be placed before 
voters?
Yes, develop the district concept & place it on the ballot
No, do not develop the concept further
Unsure

Page 31 of 39

Page 33 of 119



Two‐thirds support placing the district question 
before voters

Yes, develop the district 
concept & place it on 

the ballot
66%

No, don't develop the 
concept further

18%

Unsure
16%

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com26

Q: Do you support work on this concept continuing so it can be placed before 
voters?

Page 32 of 39

Page 34 of 119



Variability by geographic area on supporting 
developing concept for ballot is also minimal
Putting the concept on the ballot supported by 
70% of Sandy respondents, 65% of those in the 
greater Oregon Trail School District area, 67% in 
Estacada

Other differences in support for placing on ballot:
Women more than men (72% vs. 62%); households with 
children (77% vs 63%); respondents who are younger 
than 65 (72% vs. 65%).

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com27Page 33 of 39

Page 35 of 119



Highlights of voluntary (nonrandom) sample

586 surveys; 493 are Sandy or Boring ZIP codes
83% women; 2/3 children in home (reverse of 
random sample); younger age profile (avg = 45),

Comparatively higher support for indoor pool (83% 
very important), warm water pool (48%), & for 
water slide & other recreational features (28%), 
otherwise similar support for other pool features

Somewhat lower very‐important rating for access 
to river, dog park, and amphitheater; somewhat 
higher for indoor gym & athletic facility; otherwise 
similar ratings for suggestions

Greater support (among both men & women) for 
placing district question on ballot.

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com28Page 34 of 39

Page 36 of 119



Conclusions & Recommendations

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com29Page 35 of 39

Page 37 of 119



Opinions are largely similar across the three areas 
sampled
Overall, respondents from outside of Sandy — in 
the greater Oregon Trail School District & in 
Estacada — share the same views as those within 
the City regarding the key questions asked

What variability there is can be more easily 
explained by demographic differences.  Compare to 
Sandy & Estacada respondents, those living in the 
greater Oregon Trail School District area…
Have a somewhat older age profile
Are somewhat less likely to have children in the home
Are less likely to be frequent visitors to P&R facilities.

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com30Page 36 of 39

Page 38 of 119



Develop a district proposal

In our view a proposal would offer:
A conservatively expanded aquatic center
Attractive trails including pathways/enhanced access to 
the river

Playgrounds & other outdoor park/field amenities
Community/rec center if cost viable
 Support for additional parks/facilities elsewhere in the 
new district

 Save more ambitious options for a future District board 
to consider 

Expect somewhat better support in 2020 elections 
when more “younger” adults (meaning under 65) 
will likely come out to vote.

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com31Page 37 of 39

Page 39 of 119



Consider the complete picture of those who 
responded
Remember that the voluntary (nonrandom) 
responses are somewhat more supportive of 
placing the question to voters and that women, 
who were more likely to respond to either survey, 
are more supportive on many questions
Regardless of whether responses from the voluntary 
participants are different, it is important to acknowledge 
the voices of everyone who took the time to offer an 
opinion.

Sandy Parks & Recreation Survey www.cdri.com32Page 38 of 39

Page 40 of 119



For answers to questions or 
more information, contact:

Campbell DeLong Resources, Inc.
Martha DeLong, MarthaD@cdri.com

John Campbell, John@cdri.com

(503) 221‐2005 

33Page 39 of 39

Page 41 of 119



 

 

 

MINUTES 

City Council Work Session Meeting 

Monday, January 13, 2020 Sandy Community Center, 38348 Pioneer 
Blvd., Sandy, Oregon 97055 6:00 PM 

 

 

COUNCIL PRESENT: Jeremy Pietzold, Council President, John Hamblin, Councilor, Laurie Smallwood, 
Councilor, Jan Lee, Councilor, Stan Pulliam, Mayor, and Bethany Shultz, Councilor 

 

COUNCIL ABSENT: Carl Exner, Councilor 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Jordan Wheeler, City Manager, Kelly O'Neill, Development Services Director, and Andi 
Howell, Transit Director 

 

MEDIA PRESENT:  
 

1. City Council Open House  
 

2. City Council Special Meeting  
 

3. Roll Call  
 

4. New Business   
 4.1. Transit Vehicle Purchase Authorization 

 
Staff Report - 0216 
 
Andi Howell, Transit Director, addressed Council regarding the purchase of a 
new trolley. Council discussed the trolley itself, the route, and other logistics.  
 
Moved by Jan Lee, seconded by Jeremy Pietzold 

Staff Report - 0216 
 
Approve the purchase of the Hometown Trolley from Creative Bus Sales.   
 

CARRIED.  

 

 

5. Adjourn Special Meeting  
 

6. Executive Session  
 

Page 1 of 2

Page 42 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 13, 2020 

 

 6.1. ORS 192.660(f) To consider information or records that are exempt by law 
from public inspection.   

 

 

 
 

_______________________ 

Mayor, Stan Pulliam 

 

 
_______________________ 

City Recorder, Karey Milne 

 

Page 2 of 2

Page 43 of 119



 

 

 

MINUTES 

City Council Work Session Meeting 

Wednesday, January 15, 2020 City Hall- Council Chambers, 39250 
Pioneer Blvd., Sandy, Oregon 97055 5:00 PM 

 

 

COUNCIL PRESENT: Carl Exner, Councilor, Jeremy Pietzold, Council President, Laurie Smallwood, 
Councilor, Jan Lee, Councilor, Stan Pulliam, Mayor, and Bethany Shultz, Councilor 

 

COUNCIL ABSENT: John Hamblin, Councilor 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Jordan Wheeler, City Manager, Jeff Aprati, City Recorder, Sarah McIntyre, Library 
Director, Kelly O'Neill, Development Services Director, Tanya Richardson, Community 
Services Director, and Mike Walker, Public Works Director 

 

MEDIA PRESENT:   
Page 

 

1. Roll Call  
 

2. 2020 GOAL SETTING   
 2.1. Introductory Remarks 

 
Stan Pulliam, Mayor, congratulated the City on the progress made toward 
completion of the previous year’s goals.  He thanked the staff for their work 
and applauded the Council on the ambitiousness of its goals.  The Mayor also 
delivered remarks related to his vision of Sandy, emphasizing the many 
admirable qualities of the community.   

 

 
 2.2. Open House Debrief 

 
The Council shared input they received from community members at the open 
house event held on January 13, 2020.  Community input topics included: 

  

• Concern regarding the future of the Aquatic Center; desire to move 
forward with new solutions 

• Smart growth and transportation planning 

• Completion of City master plans 

• Opinions regarding how to move forward with the Community Campus 
site 

• Opinions regarding whether and how to establish a special district to 

 

Page 1 of 44

Page 44 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 15, 2020 

 

include the Community Campus site 

• Desire for more recreational / sports field facilities 

• Frustration with fee levels 

• Homelessness 

• Praise for SandyNet, the Façade Improvement Program, and Sandy 
Public Library 

• Earthquake preparedness 

• Establishing a Sustainability Committee 

• Recognizing Earth Day 

• Transportation system enhancements regarding 362nd Dr.   
 2.3. City Manager Remarks 

 
Jordan Wheeler, City Manager, reiterated the success of the recent Open 
House, emphasizing the importance of hearing community input in a more 
informal setting, and thanked the staff for their efforts toward accomplishing 
the Council’s goals over the past year.  

 

 
 2.4. City Council Goal Discussion 

 
The Council proceeded to review each of its 2019-21 goals.  Consideration of 
each goal began with a progress update by the City Manager, followed by 
Council discussion and revision if applicable.  In addition to revising the 
existing goals, the Council added several new goals to be pursued during the 
remainder of the biennium.  

  

Details on existing goal status, the staff work plan, written feedback from 
residents, and a staff memo regarding the possible formation of a parks and 
recreation special district can be found in an attached memorandum.   

  

The Council’s goal setting discussion included the following topics: 

  

Transportation 

The Council reviewed the current status of major City transportation 
projects, with particular focus on the extension of 362nd Dr. and Bell St 
which Council confirmed as a significant priority.  The existing goals of 
updating the Transportation System Plan, completing a feasibility 
assessment of a Highway 26 bypass, and investing in multimodal 
transportation options, were reaffirmed.  The Council also discussed the 
possibility of purchasing the portion of Highway 211 within the city 
limits. 

  

City Finances 

7 - 44 

Page 2 of 44

Page 45 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 15, 2020 

 

The Council discussed the need to continue to sustainably manage the 
City’s finances, maintain adequate contingencies, increase budget 
transparency, and study options for additional revenue generation.  
Specific attention was paid to the City’s urban renewal funds.  The 
Council emphasized the importance of identifying priorities for urban 
renewal spending and developing a capital improvement plan for the 
Urban Renewal Agency. 

  

Communications 

Though adding a dedicated full-time communications position proved 
impossible during the last budget process, the Council emphasized the 
need to continue actively communicating with residents, utilizing 
existing capacity to the greatest extent possible.  The newly hired City 
Recorder / Management Analyst is anticipated to play an important role 
in the City’s communications efforts.  The Council recognized the 
importance of the ongoing efforts to redesign the City website including 
incorporation of tourism content, and to improve the City’s social media 
strategy.  Additional communications priorities identified by the Council 
included instituting an e-newsletter, developing a brochure to promote 
Sandy tourism, and using electronic media to publicize proposed 
developments and annexations. 

  

Comprehensive Plan 

Given the strong growth experienced in Sandy in recent years, the 
Council discussed the importance of moving forward with updating the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, which has not been exhaustively updated 
since 1997.  Building on the momentum of the recent open house, the 
Council chose to begin the public engagement component of the 
Comprehensive Plan update process. 

  

Wastewater 

The Council discussed the importance of engaging with the Governor’s 
Office and developing a robust plan to support a funding request from 
the State during the 2021 Legislative Session, particularly given the 
anticipated decrease in State revenue and competition of requests.  
While wastewater is a high priority of the Council, such a funding 
request could relate to other policy areas.  

  

Climate Action 

The Council discussed the need to develop a climate action plan for 
Sandy, given both the inherent environmental benefits and the priority 
given to cities with such plans within the State funding process.  The 

Page 3 of 44

Page 46 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 15, 2020 

 

Council agreed to establish an ad hoc committee to begin reviewing 
other cities’ plans and discussing relevant policy ideas. 

  

Childcare 

The Council discussed the need for childcare services in Sandy, and the 
impact that sufficient childcare has on the success of economic 
development initiatives.  The Council expressed its desire to hold a work 
session to develop strategies for increasing the availability of childcare 
services.       

  

Affordable Housing 

The challenge of housing affordability was discussed, as was the 
centrality of workforce housing to economic development.  The Council 
identified the need to secure, through Clackamas County, financial 
assistance from the recent Metro affordable housing bond.  It was 
determined that a briefing from County staff at an upcoming work 
session would be appropriate. 

  

Homelessness 

The Council considered the challenge of addressing homelessness in 
Sandy, and discussed approaches being taken by other jurisdictions, 
such as the City of Tacoma.  The Council chose not to add a new 
homelessness-related goal at this time. 

  

Tourism 

The Council discussed the usage of transient room tax revenue in the 
City budget, and underlines the need for effective marketing materials 
to promote tourism in Sandy.  Several successful examples were 
identified, including those from the City of Canby.  It was determined 
that a tourism action item should be added to the Communications goal 
(see above). 

  

Economic Development 

The Council underlined the importance of focusing efforts directly on 
business attraction and recruitment.  It was agreed to hold an upcoming 
work session to discuss strategies for bringing businesses to Sandy, and 
the benefits of having shovel-ready sites for prospective companies.  

  

Community Campus 

The Council discussed options for improving the Community Campus 
site, including the Aquatic Center, through proposing to voters the 
establishment of a new special district. 

Page 4 of 44

Page 47 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 15, 2020 

 

  

Timing: It was the sense of the Council that the upcoming 
November 2020 General Election would be the optimal time for 
the district proposal to be put to voters, given the anticipated high 
turnout and the motivation provided by the relative recency of 
the pool closing.   

  

Asset transfer: The Council discussed several different scenarios 
concerning the future ownership of existing City park properties.  
While the desirability of retaining certain park assets was 
expressed, the potential benefits of transferring parks to a future 
district were also considered.  It was determined that a consensus 
among the Council regarding asset transfer or retention does not 
yet exist, and that further discussion at a future work session is 
warranted. 

  

Funding: The Council discussed the possibility of transferring a 
portion of the City’s urban renewal funds to the new district to 
contribute toward improvements at the aquatic center. 

  

Scope of services: The Council discussed the relative advantages 
and disadvantages presented by different possible scopes of 
services for a new district.  Potential options included an aquatics-
only district, an aquatics and recreation programming district, and 
a full parks and recreation district, among others.  Further 
discussion on this question was deemed to be necessary.  

  

Boundaries: A number of different potential district boundaries 
were discussed.  The Council considered the possible advantages 
and disadvantages of boundaries relative to the Metro border, 
Estacada city limits, the Oregon Trail School District, and the 
library service area.  It was determined that staff would provide 
Council with potential tax revenue figures based on different 
boundary configuration options. 

  

Additional input: The Council expressed its desire for additional 
public surveys that would explore in further detail the particular 
configuration of services and boundaries most likely lead to 
electoral success.  The Council also plans to hold a joint work 
session with the Parks and Trails Advisory Board to discuss options 
on February 3. 

  

Page 5 of 44

Page 48 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 15, 2020 

 

The Council determined that further discussion regarding the possible 
establishment of a parks and recreation special district will occur at a work 
session to be held on Wednesday, January 29.   
2020 Goal Setting Packet 

 

3. Adjourn  

 

 
 

_______________________ 

Mayor, Stan Pulliam 

 

 
_______________________ 

City Recorder, Karey Milne 

 

Page 6 of 44

Page 49 of 119



 

Memorandum 

 

Date: January 12, 2020 

From Jordan Wheeler, City Manager 

SUBJECT: 2019-21 Mid Biennium City Council Goal Setting 

 
In conversations with City Councilors about goals for 2020, there was a consistent theme of 
maintaining focus on current goals and major initiatives that are currently underway. Those 
include the Community Campus/Aquatic Center and the special district formation concept; 
362nd Ave and Bell Street extension; wastewater system improvements; and master plans and 
special plan updates.  
 
Other new ideas mentioned included: 

• Developing an integrated Green Plan/Climate Action Plan for Sandy  
• Expanding childcare options in Sandy 
• Affordable housing 
• Strengthening homeless and transient ordinance 
• Tourism strategy development 
• Economic development focusing on business recruitment and attraction 

 
Continuing Goals Updates and Next Steps for 2020 
 
Attached is the City’s Work Plan for 2020 which tracks council goals and other current projects 
and programs and their major milestones. Highlights of the status and next steps for the council 
goals are as follows: 
 

• 362nd and Bell Street Extension 
This major transportation project would construct 362nd Ave from Highway 26 to Bell 
Street. The estimated project is $8 million. The city will fund the project using debt 
financing backed by the state gas tax increase and the County’s vehicle registration fee 
increase.  
 
The next steps for the 362nd extension project will be to issue the RFP for design, 
engineering, and right of way services. The RFP will be advertised Wednesday, January 
15. The goal for 2020 is to progress on the design of the roadway, complete the survey 
work and appraisals, and complete the right of way and environmental assessment.  

 
 
 

Page 7 of 44

Page 50 of 119



• Wastewater System Improvements 
The Council adopted the Wastewater System Facilities Plan with the intent that a 
preferred alternative for the new discharge will be adopted and amended into the plan 
once the alternatives analysis is complete.  
 
The increase to the wastewater utility rates to pay for the first phase of the 
improvements were adopted by the Council in October 2019 and will go into effect with 
the January utility bills.  
 
The city has secured state funding ($500,000 Business Oregon earmark) for the green 
alternatives analysis and the Council approved an amendment to our existing DEQ SRF 
loan in order to begin the preliminary engineering and design work necessary to receive 
the $6 million DEQ SRF construction loan. The loan will fund the improvements at the 
existing treatment plant and the inflow and infiltration work in the collection system.  
 
The goal for 2020 is to complete the alternatives analysis, council adoption of the 
preferred discharge alternative, and begin the phase 1 improvements at the wastewater 
treatment plan and collection system.  

 
• Master Plan Updates 

The city has several master or special plans that are currently under development 
related to Council goals:  

o Transportation System Plan (TSP). The TSP contract is still under review at ODOT 
but anticipated to be ready for the Council to approve the intergovernmental 
agreement in the next month. Per the State Transportation and Growth 
Management program rules, the TSP needs to be complete by June 2021. 

o Bypass Feasibility Study. The bypass study is anticipated to take about four 
months and is projected to be complete this spring. The study results will be 
incorporated into the TSP. ODOT is still finalizing the scope of work with the 
consultant.  

o Water Master Plan. An RFP for the update of the Water Master Plan was issued 
and one proposal was received. The proposal was reviewed and deemed 
responsive. It is anticipated that the contract will be in front of Council for 
approval in the next few months with the update work beginning shortly 
thereafter and complete by December 2020.  

o Transit Master Plan. The draft Transit Master Plan will be presented to the 
Council on February 18.  

o Pleasant Street Master Plan. The Pleasant Street Master plan is being updated 
with comments that were received when the draft was reviewed with 
community members.  

o Comprehensive Plan. An outline and summary of the comprehensive plan update 
will be presented to the council in early 2020. The city will seek state grant 
funding for the update in the next biennium.   

Page 8 of 44

Page 51 of 119



 
 

• Sandy Community Campus/Aquatic Center/Special District Formation 
The community survey indicated support for making improvements to the aquatic 
center and campus and moving forward with the concept to propose a new special 
district to voters in the greater Mt. Hood community. The immediate next step is to 
determine the process and plan for developing the district concept and how the greater 
community, Estacada, and stakeholders will be involved. Some of the major questions to 
be resolved in this process is what the district’s services and assets will be, the proposed 
boundary, what improvements would be included for the community campus and 
aquatic center improvements, estimating the budget and permanent tax rate, and 
determining the questions for the voter telephone poll.  
 
A recreation or parks and recreation district for the greater Sandy and Mt. Hood area 
would provide a tremendous benefit to the community. The district, with its own stable 
and dedicated tax rate, would ensure the long term viability of current and future 
recreational activities including the re-opening and improvements of the aquatic center 
and expansion of facilities and amenities at the community campus.  
 
A separate memo on the district formation is attached.  

 
 
Attachments 

• 2019 City Council Goals Status 
• 2020 City Work Plan 
• Special District Formation Concept Next Steps 
• Online Council Input Survey Comments 
• FY19 Financial Update 

 

Page 9 of 44

Page 52 of 119



1

2019 City Council Goals
Status Update

Goal Status
1. Transportation. Improve the connectivity, mobility, and safety of the city’s transportation network through planning and implementation of 
priority projects.

Complete the Transportation System Plan update. Finalizing IGA with ODOT and scope and contract with DKS. 

Implement plans for the extension of 362nd and Bell Street. Update provided to Council on August 5. RFQ for design services will be advertised on 
January 15th  

Complete a feasibility assessment of a Highway 26 bypass. Scope and budget under development with city/ODOT. City Council meeting on 
September 3 to present scope and budget. Scope of work with DKS being finalized by 
ODOT. 

Continue to invest in multimodal options to provide choices 
for efficient means of travel.

Ongoing. New buses to be delivered in February 2020 and June 2020. Bus Barn under 
construction. Project kickoff meeting for Vista Loop to Ten Eyck sidewalk project held on 
December 16th. Design consultant contract signed and design is underway.  

2. City Finances. Sustainably manage the city’s finances to ensure we meet the needs of our residents through the efficient and effective delivery of 
public programs and services.

Establish a General Fund reserve policy. Draft policy developed and applied to FY19-21 Budget

Enhance the city’s budget to be more accessible and 
understandable to the public.

Budget document expanded to include more trends and visuals. Budget presented and 
adopted by Budget Committee and City Council. 

Study options for generating additional revenue including 
cost recovery and alternative sources of funding.

Options presented to Council at multiple workshops and Budget Committee meetings. 
Public Safety Fee established in July 2019.

Conduct a workshop on the Sandy Urban Renewal Plan. Work session held April 15.

3. Sandy Community Campus. Make a decision on the future of the Sandy Community Campus (SCC).

Implement a strategy, including a financing plan, for the 
ongoing operation and maintenance of the aquatic center.

Pool closed due to funding May 2019 while plan is developed. Council developing plan 
for putting a district measure on the ballot.

Depending on the Council’s decision on the aquatic center, 
begin the design and construction of the phase one 
improvements.

Phase 1 (pool rehabilitation) tabled until plan is developed. Community survey 
conducted.

Adopt a plan for the SCC. Conceptual plan for a community recreation center presented to Council. City Council 
studying options for different funding and development strategies. Workshop held on 
August 5. Survey completed December 2019 and results presented to Council. 

4. Communications. Enhance the city’s communications to its residents and public.

Through the budget process, consider the creation of a city 
communications position.

Funding constraints prohibited the creation of a new position. City 
Recorder/Management Analyst position created and filled. Communications firm hired 
for the Wastewater System Facilities Plan adoption and rate increase work. New city 
website being planned; four proposals and demos completed. 

5. Comprehensive Plan. Initiate an update of the city’s Comprehensive Plan.

Review options and approve an implementation strategy to 
update the Comprehensive Plan.

Outline to be presented in February 2020. 

Complete existing and in-progress city plan updates including 
the Parks Master Plan, Transportation System Plan (TSP), 
Pleasant Street Master Plan, Telecommunications Master 
Plan, Water Master Plan, and Wastewater Facilities Plan.

Parks Master Plan contract approved. Water Master Plan contract scope and contract 
under review. Wastewater Facilities Plan adopted. TSP scope and contract to be 
approved.  Draft Pleasant Street Master Plan updates in progress. Parks Master Plan 
update in progress.

6. Wastewater System Facilities Plan. Begin necessary and essential improvements to the city’s wastewater conveyance and treatment 
infrastructure.

Select preferred alternative and adopt the Wastewater 
System Facilities Plan.

Facilities Plan adopted. DEQ loan amendment approved. Green Alternatives Analysis to 
begin January 2020. 

Implement phase 1 of the facilities plan. New rates adopted by Council. RFQ for design services will be advertised in January. 

Page 10 of 44

Page 53 of 119



 

 

City of Sandy 
2020-2021 Work Plan 

 

 

Project/Program/Task Description Department 

Lead/Director 

(Consultant/Other) Actions Timeline 

Community Campus Plan/ 

Parks & Recreation District 

Council Goal 

Develop a plan for the Sandy 

Community Campus including 

the aquatic center 

Administration, 

Community Services 

Jordan Wheeler 

Tanya Richardson 

 

❏ Conduct Community Survey/Poll 

❏ Determine district formation plan 

and process 

❏ Complete Economic Feasibility 

Statement 

❏ Voter Polling 

❏ Circulate Petition 

❏ Petition Submittal/County 

Approval 

❏ Ballot Measure 

Nov. 2019 

Feb 2020 

 

 

Wastewater System 

Facilities Plan 

Council Goal 

Adopt and begin 

implementation of the 

Wastewater Facilities Plan 

preferred alternative 

Public Works Mike Walker 

(Murraysmith) 

❏ Rate Model & Rate Increase 

❏ Secure funding for phase 1 

❏ CC Facilities Plan Adoption 

❏ Design WTP improvements 

❏ Begin I&I improvements 

❏ Complete a detailed discharge 

alternatives analysis including 

Roslyn Lake, wetlands, reuse, 

export, etc. 

❏ Select a preferred discharge 

alternative and incorporate into 

facilities plan 

Jan 2020 

Jan. 2020 

Sept. 2019 

2020-21 

2020-21 

2020 

 

 

 

Winter 2020 

 

Transit Master Plan 

Council Goal 

Complete an update to the 

Transit Master Plan 

Transit Andi Howell ❏ Update the Transit Master Plan 

❏ Adopt Master Plan (CC) 

 

February 2020 

1 

Page 11 of 44

Page 54 of 119



Transit Services  Issue RFP and select contractor 

for providing transit services for 

SAM 

Transit Andi Howell ❏ Issue RFP 

❏ CC Approval 

February 2020 

April 2020 

Transportation Master Plan 

(TSP) 

Council Goal 

Update the Transportation 

System Plan 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill 

(DKS, ODOT) 

❏ Council approval of IGA 

❏ Complete TSP Update 

Winter 2020 

Summer 2021 

Parks Master Plan 

Council Goal 

Update the Parks and Trails 

Master Plan 

Community Services Tanya Richardson 

(Nancy Enabnit) 

(ESA) 

❏ Park Inventory and Needs 

Assessment 

❏ TAC Meeting 2 

❏ Public Workshop #1 

❏ Needs Assessment 

❏ Conceptual Park Designs 

❏ Public Workshop #2 

❏ Draft Parks Master Plan & Map 

❏ Capital Improvement Plan 

❏ Public Workshop #3 

❏ Complete Master Plan update 

❏ City Council Adoption (CC) 

December 2019 

Jan/Feb 2020 

Feb 2020 

Feb/Mar 2020 

Mar/Apr 2020 

May 2020 

May/June 2020 

July 2020 

Aug 2020 

Sept 2020 

Oct 2020 

Pleasant Street Master Plan 

Council Goal 

Revise and update the Pleasant 

Master Plan for Council 

approval 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill ❏ Revise Master Plan  

❏ Adopt Master Plan 

2020 

2021 

Downtown Walkability 

Assessment 

Revise and update Downtown 

Walkability Assessment 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill ❏ Present assessment (CC)

 

Summer 2020 

Comprehensive Plan 

Council Goal 

Develop a plan for updating the 

Comprehensive Plan 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill ❏ Develop a plan for a 

comprehensive plan update 

❏ Present plan to the City Council  

Winter 2020 

 

March 2020 

Water Master Plan 

Council Goal 

Update the Water Master Plan 

 

Public Works Mike Walker 

(Murraysmith) 

❏ Review Scope and Proposal 

❏ Approve Contract 

❏ Update Master Plan 

❏ CC Adoption 

Winter 2019 

Winter 2020 

2020-21 

2021 

Pay Equity/Compensation Complete a pay equity study Finance & HR Tyler Deems ❏ Pay Equity Study complete December 2019 

2 Page 12 of 44

Page 55 of 119



Study and compensation study for city 

employees. Develop 

implementation plan 

Angie Welty 

(LGPI) 

❏ Complete compensation study 

❏ Develop implementation plan 

❏ Present implementation plan 

January 2020 

March  2020 

Summer 2020 

Communications 

Improvements 

Council Goal 

Improve citywide 

communications 

Administration Jordan Wheeler 

Jeff Aprati 

❏ Create a city newsletter 

❏ Create an employee newsletter 

❏ Create/Assign communication 

responsibilities 

❏ Revamp the City website 

❏ Revise social media policy 

❏ Create Agency Account for 

Nextdoor 

2020 

2020 

2020 

 

Winter 2020 

Winter 2020 

Winter 2020 

City Facilities Assessment Complete an assessment of city 

facilities and space needs 

analysis 

Administration Tyler Deems 

Department Directors 

❏ Complete assessment 

❏ Present report to Council 

❏ Begin implementation 

❏ Incorporate projects in CIP 

December 2019 

February 2020 

February 2020 

FY21, BN21-23 

362nd and Bell Street 

Extension 

Council Goal 

Design and engineering of the 

362nd and Bell Street extension 

project 

Public Works Mike Walker ❏ RFQ for Engineering 

❏ Right of Way Acquisition Process 

❏ Financing 

❏ Bidding 

Jan. 2020 

Mar-Sept 2020 

Jan. 2021 

March 2021 

Development Services 

Assessment 

Complete an assessment of 

Development Services 

Development Services, 

Administration 

Jordan Wheeler 

Kelly O’Neill 

❏ Staff and community interviews 

❏ Receive report  

❏ Begin Implementation of 

recommendations 

Nov. 2019 

Jan. 2020 

March 2020 

Tree Code Modifications Update the city’s tree code with 

input from the community and 

stakeholders 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill ❏ Tree Code Committee 

Recommendations 

❏ City Council Review and Approval 

❏ Code update 

❏ Public communications on 

changes 

tbd 

Website Update Update the City's website IT Greg Brewster ❏ Website Demos Winter 2019 

3 Page 13 of 44

Page 56 of 119



Administration Jeff Aprati 

Jordan Wheeler 

❏ Select Firm 

❏ Update Website 

❏ Roll Out 

Feb. 2020 

May 2020 

Summer  2020 

SAM Bus Barn and Wash Bay Construct new bus barns  Transit Andi Howell ❏ Finish Design and Land Use 

Process 

❏ Construct Bus Barn 

❏ Ribbon Cutting 

Oct. 2019 

2020 

2020 

Police Public Safety Fee and 

Staffing 

Establish a public safety fee to 

increase policing 

services/balance budget 

Police, 

Finance 

Ernie Roberts ❏ Hire/promote officers 

❏ Report on revenue collection 

2019-20 

July 2020 

Budget Improvements 

Council Goal 

Enhance the city’s budget to be 

more informative 

Finance, 

Administration 

Tyler Deems 

Jordan Wheeler 

❏ Develop Budget Dashboard 

❏ Update General Fund Reserve 

Policy 

❏ Update Financial Policies 

Winter 2020 

Fall 2019 

2020-21 

Feasibility Study for 

Highway 26 Bypass 

Council Goal 

Complete a highway 26 bypass 

feasibility study 

Development Services 

Public Works 

Kelly O’Neill 

Mike Walker 

(ODOT) 

 

❏ Execute consultant contract 

❏ Complete study and integrate 

with TSP update 

Winter 2020 

Summer 2020 

Economic Development Ad 

Hoc Committee 

Create an ad-hoc Economic 

Development Committee 

Development Services, 

City Council 

David Snider ❏ Finalize and invite members 

❏ Initiate meetings 

❏ Provide recommendations to CC 

 

Sept. 2019 

Jan. 2020 

2020-21 

LED Streetlight Conversion 

and Water Meter 

Replacement ESPC 

Convert streetlights to LEDs and 

replace water meters with 

smart automatic meters 

Public Works Mike Walker 

(McKinstry) 

❏ Present technical analysis to 

Council 

❏ Execute contract 

❏ Streetlights upgraded 

❏ Water meters upgraded 

 

Nov. 2019 

Jan 2020 

Summer 2020 

2020-21 

Ten Eyck Vista Loop 

Sidewalk Project (ODOT) 

 

Construct a pedestrian path 

along Highway 26 between Ten 

Eyck and Vista Loop 

Public Works Mike Walker 

(ODOT) 

❏ Design and Engineering 

❏ Construction 

2020-21 

2021-22 

4 Page 14 of 44

Page 57 of 119



Highway 211 Road 

Jurisdiction Transfer 

Transfer jurisdiction to the City 

of Sandy, convert to local road, 

and make improvements for 

safety  

Public Works 

Administration 

Mike Walker 

Jordan Wheeler 

❏ Meet with ODOT 

❏ Update agreement 

❏ Present to Council 

Jan 2020 

Jan 2020 

Feb 2020 

SE Sandy ADA Ramp 

Improvements 

CDBG Project to replace up to 

70 non-compliant ADA ramps in 

SE Sandy  

Public Works Mike Walker 

Thomas Fisher 

❏ Complete design and contract 

documents 

❏ County awards contract  

❏ Demolition and Construction 

March 2020 

 

April 2020 

June - October 

2020 

Sign Code Review Conduct city council workshop 

and consider modifications to 

the Sign Code 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill ❏ Hold work session with City 

Council 

❏ Consider bringing options to the 

Economic Development 

committee 

tbd 

Parking Code Modifications Recommend changes to the 

city’s parking requirements 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill ❏ Present recommendations to 

Planning Commission 

❏ Present code changes to City 

Council for adoption 

Feb. 24, 2020 

 

April 2020 

Sandy Style Design Code 

Review 

Provide background to the City 

Council on the Sandy Style and 

review for modifications if 

needed/desired.  

 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill ❏ Hold work session with City 

Council 

❏ Present to Planning Commission 

and/or Economic Development 

Committee on potential code 

changes 

Oct. 2019 

Summer 2020 

Emergency Operations Plan 

Update 

Update the City’s emergency 

operations plan and continuity 

of operations plan.  

 

Police 

Administration 

Ernie Roberts 

Jordan Wheeler 

❏ Update EOP 

❏ ICS Training for Staff 

❏ City Council EOC Tour 

 

❏ Tabletop Exercise 

Winter 2020 

Ongoing 

Winter/Spring 

2020 

2021 

Library District Task Force Participate in the LNCC Task 

Force 

Library Sarah McIntyre 

Jordan Wheeler 

❏ Attend Task Force meetings and 

sub committee meetings 

2020 

 

5 Page 15 of 44

Page 58 of 119



Tyler Deems ❏ Provide positions/votes on 

recommendations for 

modifications to Library District 

2020-21 

 

6 Year Financial Forecast 

and Strategic Operations 

Plan 

 

Develop a 6 year financial 

forecast and strategic 

operations plan for the city 

Finance 

Administration 

Tyler Deems 

Jordan Wheeler 

❏ Develop financial forecast 

❏ Incorporate assumptions, comp 

study, and CIP 

❏ Present forecast to budget 

committee and city council 

 

Spring 2020 

Summer/Fall 

2020 

Spring 2021 

 

6 Year Capital Improvement 

Plan 

 

Develop a 6 year capital 

improvement plan  

Public Works 

Finance 

Mike Walker 

Tyler Deems 

❏ Complete Master Plan updates 

(Parks, TSP, Water) 

❏ Complete Facilities Assessment 

❏ Prioritize projects 

❏ Present to budget committee and 

Council 

2020-21 

 

Feb 2020 

2020 

April 2021 

City Hall Security 

Improvements 

Enhance security at city hall by 

installing controlled access 

points, lighting, and cameras 

IT 

Administration 

Public Works 

 ❏ Receive quotes for controlled 

access improvements 

❏ Re-key building 

❏ Replace security system 

2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 Page 16 of 44

Page 59 of 119



Upcoming and Future Projects and Programs  
 

Project Department Lead Next Step 

Library Book Mobile 

Purchase a book mobile for library patrons 

Library Sarah McIntyre ● Explore cost and funding options in next budget process 

Short Term Rental Regulations 

Consider adopting regulations for short term 

rentals 

Development Services Kelly O’Neill ● Research best practices and options 

● Scope and timeline for public process, hearings, code 

changes 

City Hall Improvements 

 

City Hall Departments Tyler Deems ● Complete Facilities Assessment 

● Develop plan and funding plan for interior and exterior 

city hall improvements 

● Construct interior and exterior improvements to City Hall 

● Paint city hall  

Operations Center Expansion 

Construct the second phase of the operations 

center to expand Transit and Public Works 

offices, meeting rooms, break rooms 

Transit and Public Works Andi Howell 

Mike Walker 

● Complete Facilities Assessment 

● Develop a conceptual plan and budget and incorporate 

into the facilities plan and CIP 

Library Expansion 

Consider options for expanding the public 

library for program and staff space 

Library Sarah McIntyre ● Complete Facilities Assessment 

● Develop conceptual plan and include in CIP 

 

 

City Beautification 

Implement beautification measures to 

improve city visual appearance 

Public Works 

Urban Renewal Agency 

Kelly O’Neill, 

Jordan Wheeler, 

Mike Walker 

● Update City Gateway Plan if necessary 

● New entry signs/gateways, median improvements, and 

flower planters 

● Incorporate Public Art opportunities 

● Analyze maintenance contracting costs 

7 Page 17 of 44

Page 60 of 119



West Sandy Development Framework Plan 

Develop a framework plan for the 

development of the Lundeen/Skipper 

properties 

Economic Development, 

Planning 

David Snider 

Kelly O’Neill 

● Scope the plan and process 

● Engage with Clackamas County Economic Development 

and other regional partners for technical assistance 

● Involve property owners and stakeholders 

● Develop list of conditions and recommendations for 

directing development of west Sandy. Infrastructure, 

Natural Resources, Land Use, etc. 

Right of Way Tree Planting Services 

Explore contracting out right of way tree 

planting and maintenance for new 

developments 

Public Works Mike Walker 

Kelly O’Neill 

● Research programs and contracts in other cities. 

● Draft program 

Budget Improvements Phase 2 

Modify department budget tables and 

structure, add features to the city budget 

document, and implement a budget 

dashboard 

Finance 

Administration 

Tyler Deems 

Jordan Wheeler 

Jeff Aprati 

● Revise fund structures with separate capital and 

operating balances 

● Design and develop an online budget dashboard 

 

Urban Renewal Plan Project Prioritization 

Develop a prioritized capital plan for using tax 

increment financing 

Finance 

Administration 

Tyler Deems 

Jordan Wheeler 

 

● Create a CIP for SURA 

● Update district’s financial projections 

● Prioritize projects and update CIP 

6 Year Financial Forecast and Strategic 

Operations Plan 

Develop a 6 year financial forecast and 

strategic operations plan for the city 

Finance 

All 

Tyler Deems 

Jordan Wheeler 

 

● Develop assumptions and complete projections for 

general fund 

● Complete compensation study and incorporate approved 

implementation plan 

Tickle Creek Trail Extension 

Develop a conceptual plan and 

implementation strategy for extending Tickle 

Creek Trail  

Community Services 

Public Works 

Mike Walker 

Tanya Richardson 

● Update Parks & Trails Master Plan 

● Continue to acquire easements and property to expand 

Tickle Creek trail 

Economic Development Strategy Update Economic Development Kelly O’Neill ● Meet with Economic Development Ad Hoc Committee 

8 Page 18 of 44

Page 61 of 119



Work with Greater Portland Inc. to seek an 

update to the Economic Development 

Strategy and Sandy market analysis 

Development Services David Snider 

 

● Update Sandy Market Analysis 

● Update Council policies on economic development 

● Complete Economic Development Strategy 

● Present to City Council 

Sandy River MTB Trail 

Update mountain bike trail plan and design 

and construct a dedicated trail to the Sandy 

River 

Community Services Tanya Richardson 

Parks Advisory Board 

● Update Parks and Trails Master Plan 

● Research grant opportunities for updating city mountain 

biking plan 

● Discuss joint use opportunities with ODFW 

● Complete master plan for mountain biking trails in Sandy 

River Park and Community campus/update Master Plan 

Telecommunications Master Plan Update IT Greg Brewster ● Complete an update of the City’s telecommunications 

master plan 

 

9 Page 19 of 44

Page 62 of 119



Sandy Aquatic Center, Community Campus, and Parks & Recreation 

Special District Formation Concept Next Steps 

 

Executive Summary 

 

The community survey indicated support for the pool, campus improvements, and moving forward with 

the concept to propose a new special district to voters in the greater Mt. Hood community. The 

immediate next step is to determine the process and plan for developing the district concept and ballot 

measure and how the community and stakeholders will be involved. Some of the major questions to be 

resolved in this process is what the district’s services and assets will be, the proposed boundary, what 

improvements would be included for the community campus and aquatic center improvements, 

estimating the budget and permanent tax rate, and determining the questions for the voter telephone 

poll.  

 

A recreation or parks and recreation district for the greater Sandy and Mt. Hood area would provide a 

tremendous benefit to the community. The district, with its own stable and dedicated tax rate, would 

ensure the long term viability of current and future recreational activities including the re-opening and 

improvements of the aquatic center and expansion of facilities and amenities at the community campus.  

 

Background 

 

Following the decision on the aquatic center and community campus concept plans, the City Council 

discussed the next steps for developing a plan for the aquatic center and community campus including 

the process for forming a special district on August 5. At that time, the Council decided to conduct a 

community survey to get voter input on priorities for the pool and community campus and gauge the 

support for developing and placing a special district measure on the ballot.  

 

Survey Results and Special District Formation Next Steps 

 

The community survey was completed in November and December and the results were presented at 

the January 6, 2020 City Council meeting. The community survey indicated strong support for placing the 

parks and recreation district concept before voters. The survey question indicated that a district would:  

● Have boundaries that include Sandy and the greater Mt. Hood community, and include Boring 

and Estacada,  

● Offer improved parks and recreation facilities district wide, while charging residents lower 

in-district rates for all fee based activities such as the pool or indoor gym facilities.  

 

The survey also indicated that the community supports keeping the pool open with either a renovation 

or expansion of the facility. The most important feature is an indoor pool for year-round use.  

 

In regards to improvements at the community campus property, the highest priorities were trails and 

paths providing access to the river, playgrounds, community meeting spaces, and outdoor sports fields. 

A majority supported using the entire property for public recreation and park land.  

1 

Page 20 of 44

Page 63 of 119



 

The Estacada City Council received the survey results presentation on January 13.  

 

The immediate next step for the Council is to decide on the process and plan for studying and making 

several important decisions on the parks and recreation district. Key questions, process options, and the 

steps for forming a district measure are outlined below.  

 

Key Questions for Next Steps 

 

The major questions and issues that will need to be studied and decided include but are not limited to: 

the assets the district would own and maintain/operate; the boundaries of the district; the operating 

costs; an estimate of the assessed value of the properties within the boundary; a tax rate that would be 

levied on those properties; and whether the district would issue bonds or other debt, etc. for facility 

improvements. 

 

1. What services, assets, and facilities will the new district operate, own, maintain, and provide? To 

be considered: 

a. Sandy Aquatic Center 

b. Community Campus buildings and property (all or a portion) 

c. Sandy city parks and trails 

d. Current city recreation programming and special events 

e. Sandy Senior Center 

f. Parks and recreation programming in the greater district territory 

g. Future parks and trails in Sandy and in the greater district terrority  

2. How does the Parks and Trails Master Plan update interact with the district formation process? 

The Parks Master Plan update is currently underway. Included in the update is an inventory, 

needs assessment, and level of service analysis, all which should be completed by this spring. 

These components will help inform what the gaps are for park services in Sandy. The project has 

assembled a stakeholder advisory committee and will include public workshops and online 

surveys. Especially if the new district will include park assets, this is a great opportunity to 

leverage and perhaps expand the work already underway for the master plan update to engage 

citizens about the district concept.  

3. What are the proposed boundaries for the proposed district?  

The survey indicated that there was support district-wide and Estacada for putting the measure 

on the ballot. Should the district boundaries be consistent with the Oregon Trail School District, 

the City of Estacada, or narrowed (or expanded)?  

4. What are the operating costs for those services and assets?  

For city owned properties and services such as parks, pool, senior center, and recreation, these 

costs can be calculated using the city’s budget and financial reports. Future operational costs 

should also be estimated for any planned or anticipated parks or facilities that would be 

constructed by the district. Alternatively, the new district would assume responsibility for 

developing their own parks needs and general obligation bond proposals. The parks plan update 

2 

Page 21 of 44

Page 64 of 119



will include conducting a needs assessment which can be applied and extrapolated to a broader 

territory. 

5. What improvements will be made to the pool and campus and will the city fund some of those 

improvements or will the new district?  

The survey indicated that the community supports keeping the existing pool and investing in 

either a renovation or expansion of the pool. We have a rough estimate of what it would cost to 

renovate the pool but an estimated cost for a conservative expansion such as an outdoor splash 

pad would need to be developed. Alternatively, the district would assume responsibility for 

making any renovations or improvements to the pool and the Council or Sandy Urban Renewal 

Agency could decide to contribute funding towards those improvements.  

6. What is the proposed budget and tax rate for the new district?  

Once those questions are answered, then the operating costs and budget can be developed for 

the proposed district and the tax rate can be calculated that would support those services.  

7. What are the next steps for the voter poll?  

Once the outline for the district is developed and a tax rate estimated, the measure can be 

tested with likely voters through a telephone poll.  

 

The questions for the poll that is testing the concept should be close to the final configuration to 

what would be proposed. According to the consultant’s proposal, the general outline of the type 

of questions to be asked follows: 

● How they would vote if the proposed parks and recreation district with a specific 

permanent tax rate is placed on the ballot, including an initial “yes/no/don’t know” 

question and follow-up questions to gauge the strength of their support. 

● Reaction to 10 to 12 factual statements about the proposed district to determine 

messages it is important to communicate to voters to aid in decision making. 

● Perception of the current quality of parks and recreational programs provided in the 

area to be served by the proposed district. Depending on timing, a question about the 

use of local parks may be asked. 

● Demographic questions, including age, gender, education, and how long they have lived 

in the area to be served by the proposed district. 

 

Concept Development Process Options 

 

The council should decide on a process and plan for addressing the questions and issues. This could 

include input from the parks advisory board, community stakeholders, forming a district exploratory 

committee, and/or involving other interested groups, cities, or community planning organizations. 

Involving community groups will also be helpful for circulating the petition, which must be signed by 

15% of the registered voters in the district.  

 

The broader district boundary (Oregon Trail School District and Estacada) could include a territory that 

includes Clackamas County community planning organizations (CPOs) such as Boring, Bull Run, Firwood, 

and Rhododendron, and the City of Estacada. Outreach to those organizations and involvement by 

property owners in those areas could help engender excitement, buy-in, and support for the measure. If 

3 

Page 22 of 44

Page 65 of 119



the district is proposed to include the potential construction and maintenance of new parks and 

amenities in the greater Mt. Hood area, engaging community groups and voters in those areas to 

understand their needs, gather their ideas, and incorporate any existing plans would help further 

develop the concept.  

 

Typically for special district formation efforts, a committee of citizen volunteers is formed to help 

answer the questions and address issues, circulate petitions, and develop individuals to serve on the 

future Board for the district. The committee could play a role for organizing outreach and public 

meetings, bring in speakers and engage technical experts, and lead the campaign for the passage of the 

district measure.  

 

The Council will next be meeting with the Parks Advisory Board to discuss the survey results, gather their 

initial ideas on the process and concept, and share the next steps.  

 

District Formation Process 

 

The district formation process was summarized by a memorandum from City Attorney David Doughman 

for the August 5 City Council meeting. The legal requirements to file a measure with the county include 

an economic feasibility statement, passing a city council resolution, and a petition. These requirements 

are summarized below: 

 

Economic Feasibility Statement 

The feasibility statement must contain:  

● A description of the services and functions to be performed or provided by the proposed 

district;  

● An analysis of the relationships between those services and functions and other existing or 

needed government services; and  

● A proposed first year line item operating budget and a projected third year line item operating 

budget for the new district that demonstrate its economic feasibility.  

 

The statement would be developed based on the Council’s and/or community’s direction on the 

questions outlined above. The feasibility statement then also serves as the basis for what the permanent 

tax rate would be for the proposed district to sufficiently provide the services.  

 

Petition 

The formation of a special district measure is to be initiated by filing a petition with the Clackamas 

County Board. The petition must include the principal act of the district; the number of elected board 

members; whether board members will be elected at large or from zones; the proposed permanent tax 

rate; any terms and conditions to which the district would be subject; and a description of the district’s 

boundaries.  

 

The petition must also include a certified copy of a resolution of the Sandy City Council (and Estacada 

City Council if they are included) approving the petition. 

4 

Page 23 of 44

Page 66 of 119



 

The petition must be signed by at least 15% of the electors in the proposed district. For reference, as of 

January 14th, there are 23,342 registered voters within the OTSD boundary, and 2,749 within the City of 

Estacada. 

 

Recommendations 

 

Staff recommends the Council review the district formation information and discuss the desired next 

steps for moving forward with setting a goal for the aquatic center, campus, and district formation 

concept.  

 

A high level outline of a process option: 

1. Meet with the Parks Advisory Board and consider forming a district formation committee to 

assist developing a plan. Coordinate with the City of Estacada on the next steps for involving 

them in the process.  

2. With the committee’s assistance, develop the plan for the district by deciding on a proposed 

configuration, boundary, and scope for the district and developing a budget and tax rate. 

Depending on the district concept and boundaries and community involvement, consider hiring 

a consultant to assist with the project and economic feasibility statement. 

3. Conduct a voter poll on the proposed concept and tax rate 

4. Complete economic feasibility statement and petition 

5. Circulate petition and submit to county 

 

 

 

5 

Page 24 of 44

Page 67 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

1 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Aquatic center

#1#1
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 2:49:18 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 2:49:18 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 2:50:07 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 2:50:07 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4800:00:48
IP Address:IP Address:   67.50.16.20667.50.16.206

Page 1

Page 25 of 44

Page 68 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

2 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

POOL & PARKS- WASTE WATER TREATMENT

#2#2
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 3:14:35 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 3:14:35 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 3:14:56 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 3:14:56 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:2000:00:20
IP Address:IP Address:   65.182.241.14765.182.241.147

Page 1

Page 26 of 44

Page 69 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

3 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

we need a dispensary to tap into tax benefits.

#3#3
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 3:40:02 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 3:40:02 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 3:40:30 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 3:40:30 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:2800:00:28
IP Address:IP Address:   65.132.52.14665.132.52.146

Page 1

Page 27 of 44

Page 70 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

4 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

*Pool/rec center 
*Quality of living during a time of inevitable growth

#4#4
INCOMPLETEINCOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 4:19:09 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 4:19:09 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 4:24:03 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 4:24:03 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:04:5400:04:54
IP Address:IP Address:   173.241.161.244173.241.161.244

Page 1

Page 28 of 44

Page 71 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

5 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Pool and community center.

#5#5
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 4:26:51 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 4:26:51 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 4:27:14 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 4:27:14 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:2300:00:23
IP Address:IP Address:   173.241.170.129173.241.170.129

Page 1

Page 29 of 44

Page 72 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

6 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Traffic

#6#6
INCOMPLETEINCOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 6:24:45 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 6:24:45 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 6:25:26 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 6:25:26 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4100:00:41
IP Address:IP Address:   174.247.160.208174.247.160.208

Page 1

Page 30 of 44

Page 73 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

7 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Traffic/crowded schools due to over development. Slow down Sandy!  We use to like the small town feel.

#7#7
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 6:45:38 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 6:45:38 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 6:47:52 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 6:47:52 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:02:1300:02:13
IP Address:IP Address:   172.58.45.6172.58.45.6

Page 1

Page 31 of 44

Page 74 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

8 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Managing and controlling growth. Sustainably. Also getting rid of homeless.

#8#8
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 6:54:19 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 6:54:19 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 6:55:08 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 6:55:08 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4900:00:49
IP Address:IP Address:   50.45.254.16550.45.254.165

Page 1

Page 32 of 44

Page 75 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

9 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

The Sandy Community Campus and what they are planning to do with the pool and old Cedar Ridge Middle School.

#9#9
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 7:00:05 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 7:00:05 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 7:01:28 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 7:01:28 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:2200:01:22
IP Address:IP Address:   50.45.254.16550.45.254.165

Page 1

Page 33 of 44

Page 76 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

10 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Fiscal responsibility!

#10#10
INCOMPLETEINCOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 9:02:20 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 9:02:20 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 9:03:00 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 9:03:00 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4000:00:40
IP Address:IP Address:   173.241.162.32173.241.162.32

Page 1

Page 34 of 44

Page 77 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

11 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Bypass

#11#11
INCOMPLETEINCOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 9:31:05 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 9:31:05 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, December 20, 2019 9:31:24 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 9:31:24 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:1900:00:19
IP Address:IP Address:   173.241.161.80173.241.161.80

Page 1

Page 35 of 44

Page 78 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

12 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Please focus on public safety and road improvement!

#12#12
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, December 21, 2019 8:47:01 PMSaturday, December 21, 2019 8:47:01 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, December 21, 2019 8:59:02 PMSaturday, December 21, 2019 8:59:02 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:12:0100:12:01
IP Address:IP Address:   173.241.168.107173.241.168.107

Page 1

Page 36 of 44

Page 79 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

13 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Public Transportation

#13#13
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, December 24, 2019 10:47:58 AMTuesday, December 24, 2019 10:47:58 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, December 24, 2019 10:49:11 AMTuesday, December 24, 2019 10:49:11 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:1300:01:13
IP Address:IP Address:   174.253.195.92174.253.195.92

Page 1

Page 37 of 44

Page 80 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

14 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Replacing the existing skatepark with a more safe and modern design . This will allow kids and visitors alike have a great place to let off 
steam for years to come . Also the influence of pro snowboarders coming thru to mount hood will use this park and bring money to the 
town . The condition the park is in now no one comes to use it .

#14#14
INCOMPLETEINCOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, December 24, 2019 11:28:08 AMTuesday, December 24, 2019 11:28:08 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, December 24, 2019 11:30:59 AMTuesday, December 24, 2019 11:30:59 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:02:5000:02:50
IP Address:IP Address:   76.14.230.20876.14.230.208

Page 1

Page 38 of 44

Page 81 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

15 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

We need a bypass!!

#15#15
INCOMPLETEINCOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, December 20, 2019 3:30:37 PMFriday, December 20, 2019 3:30:37 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, January 08, 2020 11:47:36 AMWednesday, January 08, 2020 11:47:36 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   Over a weekOver a week
IP Address:IP Address:   50.45.220.8850.45.220.88

Page 1

Page 39 of 44

Page 82 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

16 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Addressing traffic issues and continued managed growth with efforts made towards commercial and light industrial growth (which will 
probably be slow without first addressing faster, easier routes to major regional highways

#16#16
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, January 08, 2020 11:51:49 AMWednesday, January 08, 2020 11:51:49 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, January 08, 2020 11:53:41 AMWednesday, January 08, 2020 11:53:41 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:5100:01:51
IP Address:IP Address:   173.241.171.226173.241.171.226

Page 1

Page 40 of 44

Page 83 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

17 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

More police officers. With the rate of growth in our city, we need additional public safety to protect our property and highways. Sandy is 
incredibly short on police for the surrounding population served.

#17#17
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, January 08, 2020 2:10:58 PMWednesday, January 08, 2020 2:10:58 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, January 08, 2020 2:12:00 PMWednesday, January 08, 2020 2:12:00 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:0100:01:01
IP Address:IP Address:   173.241.160.12173.241.160.12

Page 1

Page 41 of 44

Page 84 of 119



2020 City Council Goals SurveyMonkey

18 / 18

Q1 The City Council will be meeting in early 2020 to update their goals for the city. In preparation for their goal setting,
they would love to hear your thoughts and receive your input. What do you think the Council should focus on in 2020?

Don't make stuff up to work on. Save taxpayer dollars and don' t screw things up.

#18#18
INCOMPLETEINCOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Thursday, January 09, 2020 7:50:54 AMThursday, January 09, 2020 7:50:54 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Thursday, January 09, 2020 7:52:54 AMThursday, January 09, 2020 7:52:54 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:5900:01:59
IP Address:IP Address:   75.174.156.6175.174.156.61

Page 1

Page 42 of 44

Page 85 of 119



Beginning Balances 

The audit of is fiscal year 2019 is now complete, allowing us to publish final numbers and better 
understand our current financial picture. The Finance Department has completed an analysis to 
compare our projected beginning balances for the biennium to actuals. We’ve broken the 
analysis into two sections: General Fund and Other Funds. 

General Fund: The General Fund is responsible for all general operations of the City. Below is a 
listing of each department within the General Fund: 

 

As you can see, most General Fund departments have a beginning balance greater than what was 
budgeted. This means that the departments have additional revenue, which can either be set 
aside as contingency, or used for one-time purchases. These funds should not be used for ongoing 
commitments, such as staff. Some notable items include: 

• General Revenue higher than projected due to continuing strong revenue streams from 
property taxes and franchise fees. 

• Non-Departmental lower than projected due to the supplemental budget in June 2019, 
which transferred funds from Non-Departmental to Legal and Police. 

Other Funds: Other Funds includes all other funds of the City, from special review funds to 
enterprise funds. These funds have dedicated purposes, and typically cannot be spent for any 
items other than the intended purpose. Below is a listing of other funds, with specific purposes: 

Page 43 of 44

Page 86 of 119



 

Again, as you can see, most of these funds have a beginning balance higher than what was 
budgeted. Notable items include: 

• Street fund continued to see very strong state gas tax revenue, as well as system 
development charges (SDCs). Additionally, projects like street paving took place in both 
fiscal years, with resulted in many expenses not being paid until FY 2020. 

• Water fund continued to see strong water utility revenue, as well as SDCs. 
• Urban Renewal property tax revenue was higher than budgeted, and capital expenditures 

in this fund were not as high as expected, as projects such as the City Hall Remodel and 
the Community Campus were not completed. 

Based on the variances shows above between projected and actual beginning balances, it is safe 
to say that staff has done a decent job at projecting where their respective departments would 
be going into this biennium. None of the variances are significant enough to halt projects or have 
a serious negative impact on any department or fund. Minor modifications may be needed for a 
few departments or funds, but these are minimal and will not impact services. 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are the largest source of revenue for the City. This makes up nearly 73% of General 
Revenue, and 41% of Urban Renewal Revenue. As of December 31, our receivable rate is very 
favorable, as can be seen below: 

General Fund: To date, the General Fund has received nearly $3.3 million in property taxes, which 
equates to 94% of the current year budget, and 46% of the biennial budget. 

 

Urban Renewal Fund: To date, the Urban Renewal Fund has received over $1.6 million in 
property taxes, which is over 93% of the current year budget, and 46% of the biennial budget. 

 

Page 44 of 44

Page 87 of 119



 

 

 

MINUTES 

City Council Work Session Meeting 

Wednesday, January 29, 2020 City Hall- Council Chambers, 39250 
Pioneer Blvd., Sandy, Oregon 97055 6:00 PM 

 

 

COUNCIL PRESENT: Carl Exner, Councilor, Jeremy Pietzold, Council President, John Hamblin, Councilor, 
Laurie Smallwood, Councilor, Jan Lee, Councilor, Stan Pulliam, Mayor, and Bethany 
Shultz, Councilor 

 

COUNCIL ABSENT:  

 

STAFF PRESENT: Jordan Wheeler, City Manager, Jeff Aprati, City Recorder, and Tyler Deems, Finance 
Director 

 

MEDIA PRESENT:   
Page 

 

1. Roll Call  
 

2. SPECIAL DISTRICT FORMATION DISCUSSION 

  
INTRODUCTORY DISCUSSION: 
 
Stan Pulliam, Mayor, thanked staff for handling community concerns regarding the recent 
wastewater rate increase, and the communications sent out via social media and the City 
website.  The Mayor stressed the importance of unanimity among Council members, and 
indicated he would attempt to find points of consensus. 
 
Jordan Wheeler, City Manager, indicated the main questions that remain for discussion include 
the particular combination of services the special district would be charged with providing, and 
the boundaries of the district (which directly affect the required tax rate).  Mr. Wheeler 
presented estimated costs for different service combinations (aquatic center, recreation 
programs, multi generational recreation center, park facilities, senior services, etc.). 
 
BOUNDARIES: 
 
Jordan Wheeler, City Manager, presented various scenarios for district boundaries along with 
the resulting tax base for each scenario.  The Council discussed the efficiency advantages of 
using boundaries from existing districts. Councilors discussed the possibility of district 
boundaries including the Sandy Library service area without the portion within Metro. 
 
Stan Pulliam, Mayor, indicated that concerns were expressed by organizers of the prospective 
Hoodland Community Park regarding possible overlap of intended boundaries.  The consensus 

 

Page 1 of 23

Page 88 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 29, 2020 

 
of the Council is that a Sandy district would not attempt to include the Hoodland area. 
 
The Council generally agreed with upon two possible district boundary scenarios: 

1. Extending west to the Metro boundary, north to the OTSD boundary, east to Sandy 
Library service area boundary, and south to the Eagle Creek CPO boundary. 

2. Encompassing the Sandy Library service area without the portion within the limits of 
Metro. 

 
The consensus of the Council was to not include Estacada or Welches in the district at this 
time.  Staff indicated that the board of the district could seek to expand its boundaries to 
include additional territory in the future, which would require a further public process and 
election. 
 
SERVICES: 
 
Staff presented various options for district services along with estimated costs.  While 
increased levels of service would require a higher district property tax rate, more expansive 
district boundaries would increase the tax base, thus lowering the property tax rate needed to 
fund the desired services.   
 
Staff pointed to the increased complexities of including parks within the proposed district, given 
the challenges inherent in asking voters to pay more in taxes for parks they currently use cost-
free. 
 
The Council discussed the option of retaining ownership of certain parks, including Meinig 
Park, and transferring the rest to the district. It was acknowledged that retaining some parks 
would require ongoing maintenance costs.  The idea of retaining the house at Bornstedt Park 
and the Community Campus Annex building was also discussed. 
 
The Council stressed the advantages of presenting a simple, easy to understand proposal to 
voters, and agreed on the need to trust the future district board, which will likely be comprised 
of local individuals committed to the success of Sandy’s parks.  It was thus agreed that if the 
district includes parks as part of its scope of services, there should not be an attempt to retain 
City ownership of certain parks. The City would retain ownership only over certain facilities, 
such as the Bornstedt Park house and the Community Campus Annex. 
 
PUBLIC OUTREACH: 
 
The Council agreed on the need for further public polling to measure the scope of district 
services that voters would support (given the resulting impact on tax rates). 
 
Stan Pulliam, Mayor, indicated his desire to appoint a member of the Parks and Trails Advisory 
Board to the workgroup spearheading public outreach and surveying for the district formation 
effort.  The Council concurred. 
 
The Council agreed that establishing the district through the petition process was infeasible 
due to lack of time.  It will thus be necessary to seek the County’s agreement to exercise its 
own authority to place the district formation question before voters.  The Council agreed there 
would be a need for active coordination with County Board members - including meeting in-

Page 2 of 23

Page 89 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 29, 2020 

 
person to build engagement and begin securing their support. 
  
FURTHER DISCUSSION: 
 
Questions were asked regarding system development charges in the event a district including 
parks is established: would SDCs collected by the City be transferred to the district?  Staff 
indicated that the particulars of SDC division would be subject to future negotiations with the 
district. The City may also choose to reduce SDCs, assuming the district would impose its own. 
 
Laurie Smallwood, Councilor, asked whether it would be possible to use Urban Renewal funds 
to make improvements on the Community Campus.  Staff confirmed that this would be 
possible. 
 
Councilors expressed a desire to develop a property tax bill calculator that could be used by 
property owners to determine what their new bill would be should the district be established. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Makoto Lane, Parks and Trails Advisory Board member:  

• Mr. Lane asked why the Council feels the need to move quickly.  Council members 
cited a desire to seize the opportunity to leverage the community interest that exists 
after the pool closing, which may diminish over time, and to take advantage of the 
anticipated high voter turnout and advantageous voter demographics at the November 
2020 general election. 

• Mr. Lane also asked how the City will ensure that Sandy is represented on the district 
board.  It was explained that elections will occur, and decisions will need to be made 
prior to district formation regarding possible zones within the district.  Sandy’s 
population will likely result in relatively strong local representation on the board. 

• Mr. Lane asked whether the City has considered having a private entity lease and 
operate the pool.  Council members answered that it would not be likely to make 
economic sense. 

 
Kathleen Walker, Parks and Trails Advisory Board Chair: 

• Ms. Walker stressed the importance of proceeding in a deliberate, collaborative 
manner, incorporating as much input from members of the public as possible.  She 
cited the expertise of current and former local leaders with parks experience, some of 
whom have serious concerns about the speed with which the City is moving on this 
issue and the lack of time to build consensus.  Ms. Walker stated that the Parks and 
Trails Advisory Board should be actively providing input into the process, and is 
concerned that the Council may have already determined a path forward without the 
Parks and Trails Advisory Board's involvement. She also expressed concerns about 
forming a new layer of government.  

• The Council agreed that community involvement is necessary to understand what the 
public wants and to build stakeholder buy-in.  To secure approval from voters, the 
district will need active support and advocacy from local leaders and parks volunteers.   

 
Presentation materials describing different possible service scenarios, district boundaries, and 
tax rates are attached to these minutes. 
 

Page 3 of 23

Page 90 of 119



City Council Work Session  

January 29, 2020 

 

  
 2.1. 

 
Special District Formation PPT 5 - 23 

 

3. Adjourn  

 

 
 

_______________________ 

Mayor, Stan Pulliam 

 

 
_______________________ 

City Recorder, Karey Milne 

 

Page 4 of 23

Page 91 of 119



Special District Formation
Work Session

1

Page 5 of 23

Page 92 of 119



Special District Formation Work Session

● District Purpose 
● District Boundary
● District Tax Rate
● Formation Process

2

Page 6 of 23

Page 93 of 119



Special District Type

ORS 198 / ORS 266

Parks & Recreation Districts (includes Aquatic Districts, Parks 
Districts, Recreation Districts)

3

Page 7 of 23

Page 94 of 119



Question 1

4

What is the purpose of the district?

● Aquatics/Pool

● Recreation (programming, events)

● New Community Center/Community Recreation Center

● Park development and park maintenance

● Senior Center and Services

Page 8 of 23

Page 95 of 119



Question 2

5

What is the cost to provide those services? 

Page 9 of 23

Page 96 of 119



District Services Cost Estimates

6

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

Aquatics $623,827 $1,083,772 $1,206,750

Administration   277,066       291,171       307,177

Recreation   258,486       315,118       376,141

Rec Center   571,943       252,046       270,048

Parks - Sandy   386,798       400,830       450,808

Parks - Estacada   209,132       230,045       253,050

Seniors   388,794       412,028       440,360

Page 10 of 23

Page 97 of 119



District Scenarios

7

Aquatics Aquatics + 
Admin + 

Recreation

Aquatics + Admin 
+ Recreation +

Rec Center 

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

$  623,827

 1,083,772

 1,206,750

$ 1,159,379

   1,690,061

   1,890,068

$ 1,731,322

   1,942,107

   2,160,116

Page 11 of 23

Page 98 of 119



District Scenarios

8

Aquatics + 
Admin + 

Recreation +
Rec Center + 
Sandy Parks

Aquatics + 
Admin + 

Recreation +
Rec Center + 

Sandy Parks + 
Estacada Paks

Aquatics + 
Admin + 

Recreation +
Rec Center + 

Sandy Parks + 
Estacada Parks + 

Seniors

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

$ 2,118,120

   2,342,937

   2,610,924

$ 2,327,252

   2,572,982

   2,863,973

$ 2,716,046

   2,985,010

   3,304,334

Page 12 of 23

Page 99 of 119



Question 3

9

What is the proposed boundary?

● Parameters/Factors:

○ Clackamas County

○ Oregon Trail School District

○ County Library District (Sandy)

○ Metro

○ Hoodland Parks & Rec District Proposal

○ Estacada

Page 13 of 23

Page 100 of 119



Community Campus Facility

10

Existing Sandy Area Districts, 
Neighborhoods, and Boundaries

Page 14 of 23

Page 101 of 119



District Boundaries Options

11

Sandy Estacada Example 1 Example 2 Example 3 Example 4 Example 5

City limits City limits West - Metro
North - OTSD
East - Library 
South - Eagle 
Creek 

Sandy Library 
District not 
including Metro

Sandy Urban 
Reserve

Oregon Trail 
School District 
less Welches 
School Territory

Oregon Trail 
School District

$896,195,940 $317,984,414 $3,041,794,731 $2,201,126,818 $1,026,355,112 $2,104,502,617 $3,476,975,030

Page 15 of 23

Page 102 of 119



Community Campus Facility

12

Page 16 of 23

Page 103 of 119



Community Campus Facility

13

Page 17 of 23

Page 104 of 119



Community Campus Facility

14

Page 18 of 23

Page 105 of 119



Question 4

15

What is the proposed tax rate for the district?

● Variables: District purpose and budget + boundary 

Program Revenues - Expenditures = property taxes needed

Assessed Value in the District / 1000 x proposed tax rate = 

Estimated property tax revenue

Page 19 of 23

Page 106 of 119



16

Boundary 
Assessed Value 
(city)
$1,000,000,000

Boundary 
Assessed Value
$1,500,000,000

Boundary 
Assessed Value
$2,000,000,000

Boundary 
Assessed Value
$2,500,000,000

Boundary 
Assessed Value
$3,000,000,000

Boundary 
Assessed Value 
(OTSD)
$3,500,000,000

Aquatics Year 1: 0.65
Year 3: 1.16

0.43
0.77

0.32
0.58

0.26
0.47

0.22
0.39

0.19
0.33

Aquatics + 
Recreation

Year 1: 1.18
Year 3: 1.81

0.79
1.21

0.59
0.91

0.48
0.73

0.40
0.61

0.34
0.52

Aquatics + 
Recreation + Rec 
Center

Year 1: 1.77
Year 3: 2.07

1.18
1.38

0.88
1.04

0.71
0.83

0.59
0.69

0.51
0.60

Aquatics + 
Recreation + Rec 
Center + Parks 
(Sandy)

Year 1: 2.16
Year 3: 2.51

1.45
1.67

1.08
1.26

0.87
1.01

0.72
0.84

0.62
0.72

Aquatics + Recreation 
+ Rec Center + Parks 
(Sandy & Estacada)

N/A Year 1: 1.58
Year 3: 1.83

1.19
1.38

0.95
1.10

0.79
0.92

0.68
0.79

Aquatics + Recreation 
+ Rec Center + Parks 
(Sandy & Estacada) + 
Seniors

N/A Year 1: 1.84
Year 3: 2.12

1.38
1.59

1.12
1.27

0.92
1.06

0.79
0.91

Tax Rate Needed

Page 20 of 23

Page 107 of 119



Impact to Property Owners

17

Average Assessed Value 

(within City limits): 

$210,000

Tax Rate (per 1,000 of 
assessed value)

Annual Property Tax 
Increase

0.20 $42.00

0.30   63.00

0.40   84.00

0.50 105.00

0.60 126.00

0.70 147.00

0.80 168.00

0.90 189.00

1.00 210.00

Page 21 of 23

Page 108 of 119



Special District Formation Process

● District purpose, Boundary, Budget, Tax Rate(s) (Feb)
● Voter Polling (March)
● Review Poll Results, Hold public meetings
● Meet with County - County Intiatied Formation process
● Economic Feasibility Statement Proposed District (Name, 

Boundary, Tax Rate) submitted

18

Page 22 of 23

Page 109 of 119



Community Campus Facility

19

Page 23 of 23

Page 110 of 119



 

Staff Report 

 

Meeting Date: February 3, 2020 

From Sarah Richardson, Community Services 

SUBJECT: Parks and Trails Advisory Board Applicant 
 
Background: 
The Parks and Trails Advisory Board is ideally made up of seven members. Currently 
there are five active members on the board. To encourage new applicants, current 
board members and staff have been reaching out to the community and inviting new 
individuals to apply.  
  
Sam Schroyer attended a recent meeting of the Parks and Trails Advisory Board and 
has been interviewed by council liaison Laurie Smallwood, Board Chair Kathleen 
Walker, and Staff Liaison Sarah Richardson.  
  
Sam and his wife recently moved to Sandy and he brings with him a wealth of 
experience both as a volunteer and in his past professional life. 
  
Sam's professional background includes being an instructor for University of Utah's 
Recreation and Tourism Experiential Learning and Outdoor Recreation education 
courses, State of Utah's Department of Environmental Quality, and the USDA Forest 
Service. His volunteer resume is equally full. While living in Colorado he was President 
of his HOA, worked as a volunteer for English in Action, and the Forest Conservancy. 
While in Utah he served on the Main Street Committee for Panguitch, UT, and 
volunteered for the Utah Recycling Alliance and with the National Ski Patrol. 
  
Sam is an active Pickle Ball enthusiast and has already worked with the Recreation 
Department to collaborate with the Oregon Trail School District on a plan to potentially 
make Pickle Ball courts available at the new Cedar Ridge Middle School. He is just as 
interested in finding volunteer opportunities in the community and helping the Parks and 
Trails Advisory board in a variety of capacities.  
 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Sam Schroyer to the Parks and Trails Advisory Board for a 4-year term. 
 
Budgetary Impact: 
None. 

Page 111 of 119



 

Staff Report 

 

Meeting Date: February 3, 2020 

From Mike Walker, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: DEQ Planning Loan Amendment 
 
Background: 
The City has an existing $450,000 State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan with DEQ that 
funded the recently-approved Facilities Plan. We have also been approved for a 
$6,025,000 construction loan through the same program. The construction loan will fund 
improvements at the existing treatment plant ($2.95M) and Inflow and Infiltration 
correction ($3.1M) in the sewage collection system. Before we can finalize the 
construction loan we must complete an environmental review, a fiscal sustainability 
plan, a cost-effectiveness certification and a land use compatibility statement. These 
items will require some preliminary engineering and design work.  
  
DEQ suggested that since this work is planning-related we could amend the amount of 
our existing planning loan by $350K to cover these costs and get a jump on the 
environmental and pre-design work necessary before we can start construction. The 
other advantage of this approach is that the planning loan carries a 0.93% interest rate 
and the construction loan has a 1.59% interest rate. The planning loan has a five year 
term and the construction loan has a 15 year term.  
  
This item was approved by the Council on the Consent Agenda at the January 6th 
meeting. DEQ prefers that we have a Resolution or Council motion authorizing the City 
to enter into the agreement and establishing a reserve fund for the loan equal to the 
annual payment amount, ($91,000).  
 
Recommendation: 
Move to authorize the City Manager to sign the Amendment to the existing Loan 
Agreement and set aside funds in the Sewer Bond Reserve Fund annually in the 
amount of $91,000 as a reserve for the loan.  
 
Budgetary Impact: 
The additional funds for the Planning loan come from the construction loan. Debt 
service for the construction loan is included in the new sewer rates approved by the 
Council in October.  

Page 112 of 119



OREGON DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND  PAGE 1  

CITY OF SANDY: R80491 LOAN AGREEMENT AMENDMENT #2 

 

 

 

 This Amendment No. 2 to Loan Agreement No. R80491 (as amended “Loan Agreement”) 

is executed between the STATE OF OREGON ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (“DEQ”) and City of Sandy (the “Borrower”), effective as of the 

Effective Date of Amendment indicated below.  Capitalized terms used in this Amendment which 

are not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Loan Agreement. 

 

The purpose of this amendment is to increase the loan by $350,000 for a new total loan 

amount of $800,000. 

 

Date of Original Agreement: August 1, 2017. 

Effective Date of Amendment No. 1:   January 28, 2019 

Effective Date of Amendment No. 2:   January 6, 2020 

 

  

  The parties agree as follows: 

 
1. ARTICLE 1(C) is amended and restated as follows: 

 

       “(C)  LOAN AMOUNT:  $800,000.”  

 

      2. The second sentence of ARTICLE 5(C)(1) is amended and restated as follows: 

 

 “Until the Final Loan Amount is calculated, the Loan Reserve Requirement is 

 $82,543.” 

 

3.   The attached “Appendix A:  Repayment Schedule” replaces the current “Appendix   

 A:  Repayment Schedule”. 

 

       Except as expressly amended above, the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND 

LOAN AGREEMENT NO. R80491 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 
 

CITY OF SANDY 

Page 113 of 119



OREGON DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND  PAGE 2  

CITY OF SANDY: R80491 LOAN AGREEMENT AMENDMENT #2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BORROWER:  CITY OF SANDY 

 

By:        Date:       

 

Typed Name:       

 

Title:   ____________________________      

 

 

 

 

STATE OF OREGON ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS  

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

 

By:        Date:       

 Justin Green, Administrator 

 Water Quality Division 

  

Page 114 of 119



OREGON DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND  PAGE 3  

CITY OF SANDY: R80491 LOAN AGREEMENT AMENDMENT #2 

 

APPENDIX A:  REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 
 

 

Due     - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - PAYMENT - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -Principal   

Date Pmt# Principal Interest   Fees    Total     Balance   

800,000

8/1/2021 1 0 6,715 0 6,715 800,000

2/1/2022 2 87,248 3,720 0 90,968 712,752

8/1/2022 3 87,654 3,314 0 90,968 625,098

2/1/2023 4 88,061 2,907 0 90,968 537,037

8/1/2023 5 88,471 2,497 0 90,968 448,566

2/1/2024 6 88,882 2,086 0 90,968 359,684

8/1/2024 7 89,295 1,673 0 90,968 270,389

2/1/2025 8 89,711 1,257 0 90,968 180,678

8/1/2025 9 90,128 840 0 90,968 90,550

2/1/2026 10 90,550 421 0 90,971 0

TOTALS 800,000 25,430 0 825,430

Page 115 of 119



 

Staff Report 

 

Meeting Date: February 3, 2020 

From Mike Walker, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: 
Resolution 2020-01 Amending the Master Fee Schedule to Establish 
a Customer Assistance Program Rate for Residential Sewer Service 

 
Background: 
In October of last year the Council approved new rates for water and sewer service. 
Recognizing the impact that this increase would have on older, disabled and low or 
fixed-income customers, Council instructed staff to develop a Customer Assistance 
Program. At their January 6th 2020 meeting, the Council reviewed programs from other 
cities in the Portland area (Troutdale, Oregon City and Canby) with utility rates and 
household income levels similar to Sandy and approved a program to reduce the sewer 
portion of the utility bill by 50% for residential customers with a household income less 
than or equal to $31,284/year.  
  
Information on the program, eligibility requirements and application forms have been 
posted on the City's website. Staff has established procedures for processing 
applications and maintaining data security.   
  
Resolution 2020-01 will amend the Master Fees and Charges Schedule to establish the 
new rate and provide for a credit on the December/January bill for eligible customers 
who apply in a timely manner since the new rate will not be effective until after the 
December/January bills are mailed. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution 2020-01 amending the Master Fees and Charges Schedule 
 
Budgetary Impact: 
Approximately 6.2% of Sandy Residents fall below the Federal Poverty Guidelines. 
Impact on sewer revenues would be about $48K per year or about 0.2% of annual rate 
revenue. This is a conservative estimate. It is unlikely that all persons at or below this 
income level are also utility customers since many may occupy rental units where the 
property owner pays the utility bill.  

Page 116 of 119



 #2020-01 

 

 NO. 2020-01  

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SANDY ESTABLISHING A CUSTOMER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
RATE FOR SEWER SERVICE AND AMENDING THE MASTER FEE SCHEDULE  

 

Whereas, The City Council desires to amend the Master Fee Schedule and impose municipal 
fees and charges by Council Resolution; and 

  

Whereas, At their January 6, 2020 work session the Council reviewed discounts and eligibility 
criteria from other cities in the Portland metro area with existing customer assistance programs 
and population and household income characteristics similar to Sandy; and  

  

Whereas,  Council provided direction to staff on the amount of any discount and eligibility 
requirements. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Sandy that a Customer 
Assistance Program is hereby established for households with a gross income less than or equal 
to 185% of the US Dept. of Health and Humans Services Poverty Guidelines for 2019 and utility 
customers meeting the program requirements are eligible for a 50% discount on the single-
family residential sewer volume rate and monthly base fee and that the Master Fees and 
Charges schedule be amended as follows: 

  

Section 8 - Sewer Rates 

Type Existing Charge New Charge  

Residential - Customer Assistance Program 

Base Fee (per month)  $20.61  $10.31  

Volume (per 100 cubic
ft.)  

$5.29  $2.65  

  

 The fees and charges herein shall be effective for all eligible customers as of the January 15, 
2020 to February 15, 2020 billing cycle. Eligible customers who apply before March 5th, 2020 
will receive a credit based on this rate for the December 15, 2019 to January 15, 2020 billing 
cycle.  

 

This resolution is adopted by the Common Council of the City of Sandy and approved by the 
Mayor this 03 day of February 2020 

 

 

 

Page 117 of 119



 #2020-01 

 

____________________________________ 

Stan Pulliam, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Karey Milne, City Recorder  

Page 118 of 119



 

Staff Report 

 

Meeting Date: February 3, 2020 

From Jordan Wheeler, City Manager 

SUBJECT: City Recorder Appointment 
 
Background: 
Per the Sandy City Charter, Chapter III - Form of Government, Section 10, Other 
Officers, the City Recorder shall be appointed "by the Mayor with the consent of the 
Council." The Council last appointed a City Recorder (Karey Milne) in August 2017.  
The City hired Jeff Aprati in January 2020 to serve as City Recorder / Management 
Analyst. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Mayor appoint, with the consent of the Council, Jeff Aprati to 
serve as City Recorder, as provided in the City of Sandy Charter.  A motion offered by 
the Mayor and approved by vote of the Council would suffice. 

Page 119 of 119


